
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Caroline Marshall, Democratic Services on 
01432 260249 or e-mail caroline.marshall3@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting.

Agenda
Licensing sub-committee

Date: Thursday 7 March 2019

Time: 2.00 pm

Place: Committee Room 1, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.

For any further information please contact:

Caroline Marshall, Democratic Services
Tel: 01432 260249
Email: caroline.marshall3@herefordshire.gov.uk



Agenda for the Meeting of the Licensing sub-
committee
Membership

Councillor DW Greenow
Councillor PGH Cutter
Councillor AJW Powers



Herefordshire Council 7 MARCH 2019

Agenda
Pages

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.

2.  NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)
To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the committee.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations of interests in respect of Schedule 1, Schedule 2 or 
Other Interests from members of the committee in respect of items on the 
agenda.

4.  APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT 
OF 'THE DUCKER, 11 SOUTH STREET, LEOMINSTER. HR6 8JA- 
LICENSING ACT 2003

11 - 56

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of 
The Ducker, 11 South Street, Leominster. HR6 8JA called by Emma Bowell 
on behalf of the Licensing Authority.

5.  APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT 
OF THE TASTE OF RAJ, 67 ST OWEN STREET, HEREFORD. HR1 2JQ- 
LICENSING ACT 2003

57 - 86

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of 
The Taste of Raj, 67 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2JQ called by Police 
Sergeant 3456 Reynolds of West Mercia Police.

6.  APPLICATION FOR AN OCCASIONAL PREMISES LICENCE IN 
RESPECT OF HOW THE LIGHT GETS IN FESTIVAL 2019, WYE 
MEADOW, NEWPORT STREET, HAY-ON-WYE. HR3 5BZ - LICENSING 
ACT 2003

87 - 130

To consider an application for an occasional premises licence in respect of 
How the Light Gets In Festival 2019 Wye Meadow, Newport Street, Hay-on-
Wye, HR3 5BZ.





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings 

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -
 Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

 Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting.

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

 Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

 Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

 Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING


Please note that the council will be making an official audio recording of this public meeting.  
These recordings form part of the public record of the meeting and are made available for 
members of the public via the council’s website. 

To ensure that recording quality is maintained, could members and any attending members 
of the public speak as clearly as possible and keep background noise to a minimum while 
recording is in operation. 

Please also note that other attendees are permitted to film, photograph and record our public 
meetings provided that it does not disrupt the business of the meeting.

If you do not wish to be filmed or photographed, please identify yourself so that anyone who 
intends to record the meeting can be made aware.  

5



Please ensure that your mobile phones and other devices are turned to silent during the 
meeting.

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply.

Public Transport Links
There are bus stops directly outside the building. Hereford train station is a 15 minute walk, 
Hereford country bus station and Hereford city bus station are both a 5 minute walk from the 
Shirehall. 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

SHIRE HALL, ST PETERS SQUARE, HEREFORD HR1 2HX.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to the Fire Assembly Point which is located 
in the Shire Hall Side Car Park.  A check will be undertaken to ensure 
that those recorded as present have vacated the building following 
which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings.

7





Licensing Hearing Flowchart

Introduction

Discussion 

Report by council
 Outline of application
 Summary of issues 

Parties address committee using 
spokesman if necessary 

Applicant addresses committee

Members of committee can ask 
questions

Cross examination generally not 
permitted. 

All parties to have equal maximum 
length of time to speak. 

Note:  hearing may be adjourned or 
heard in party’s absence.

9





Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Meeting: Licensing sub-committee

Meeting date: Thursday 7 March 2019
Title of report: Application for a review of a premises licence 

in respect of ‘The Ducker, 11 South Street, 
Leominster. HR6 8JA– Licensing Act 2003

Report by: Licensing Officer

Classification
Open

Key Decision 
This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected
Leominster - South

Purpose
To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of The Ducker, 11 
South Street, Leominster. HR6 8JA called by Emma Bowell on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority.

Recommendation

THAT:

The Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give 
appropriate weight to:

 The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,
 The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
 The Guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and
 The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 - 2020.
 The review application

11

AGENDA ITEM 4



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Options

1. There are a number of option open to the committee:

 modify  any of the conditions of the premises licence;

 exclude  any of the licensable activities 

 remove  the designated premises supervisor;

 suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and

 revoke  the licence

2. Where the authority takes a step mentioned in bullet point 1 and 2 above it may 
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not 
exceeding three months) as it may specify.

3. Alternatively the licensing authority could determine that no action is required to 
promote the licensing objectives or they could issue an informal warning in writing to 
the licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a specified period of 
time.

Reasons for Recommendations

4. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Key Considerations

5. The licensing authority must take into account any relevant representations made.
Relevant representations are those that:

 relate to one or more of the licensing objectives;
 have not been withdrawn; and
 are made by the premises licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested 

party

6. The details of the application are:

Applicant Emma Bowell on behalf of the Licensing Authority

Solicitor Not applicable

Type of 
application:

Review

Date received:

4 January 2019

28 Days consultation  ended

1 February 2019

7. A copy of the application for the review is attached (appendix 1)

8. Copies of the review application were sent to the premise licence holder and 
responsible authorities, as well as being published on the authority’s website and 
displayed at its offices.

12



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

9. In brief the Licensing Authority’s grounds for the review are:

On three (3) separate occasions since June 2018, the premise licence holder has 
failed to comply with the CCTV condition attached to the premises licence despite two 
(2) warning letters.

Premises History

10. The premises known as ‘The Ducker’ has been licensed for many years and was also 
known as ‘The Ducking Stool’ previously to July 2017. 

11. On 25 July 2017 Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins made application for transfer of the 
premises licence and change of designated premises supervisor into her name, 
which was granted. 

12. On 26 July 2017 an application was received for a variation of the premises licence. 

13 The application received representation and was bought before this committee on 25 
September 2017.

14. The variation licence was granted with a number of conditions (see appendix 2). Of 
particular note is the condition which states:

CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial 
recognition. Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire 
exits, outside areas, and all areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. 
Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date 
stamped , recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept 
for a period of 31 days and handed to Police on demand. The Premises Licence 
Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable and 
competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format EITHER DISC or 
VHS to the Police/Local Authority on demand. The Recording equipment and 
tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the DPS or 
other responsible named individual. An operational daily log report must be 
maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is 
compliant, in the event of any failings actions taken are to be recorded. In the event of 
technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST 
report the failure to the Police on contact number 101 immediately

15. Between June and the end of December 2018 West Mercia Police attended the 
premises on three separate occasions in connection with incidents at the premises 
and on each occasion they were unable to obtain the CCTV.

16 After the first two incidents the Licensing Authority sent warning letters to the 
Premises Licence Holder.

17. Following the last breach reported by the police the Licensing Authority launched the 
review. 

Current Licence

18. The current licence (appendix 3) authorises the following licensable activities during 
the hours shown:

13



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Live Music

Sunday – Thursday 20:00 – 23:00

Friday – Saturday 20:00 – 00:00

Recorded Music

Sunday – Thursday 19:00 – 23:00

Friday – Saturday 19:00 – 00:00

Late Night Refreshement

Friday – Saturday 23:00 – 00:00

Sale/Supply of Alcohol

Sunday – Thursday 11:00 – 00:00

Friday – Saturday 11:00 – 01:00

19. The licence is also subject to a number of conditions.

Circumstances leading to the review

20. On 8 June 2018, West Mercia Police attended the premises in connection with an 
incident that occurred at the premises. The attended on 20 June 2018 to find that the 
CCTV they required had been recorded over.

21. On 3 July 2018, the Licensing Authority wrote to the Premise Licence Holder, Sian 
Dale Rooke-Jenkins, regarding the breach of condition with regards to the CCTV 
(appendix 4).

22. She responded by email on 3 July 2018 apologising for not having an up to date 
CCTV system and advised that she would be updating the system immediately to one 
that does provide one (1) months recordings (appendix 5).

23. On 27 July 2018 the Licensing Authority sent a message to members of the HAND 
Scheme concerning premises not complying with the CCTV condition (appendix 6). 

24. The Ducker is a member of the Leominster HAND scheme.

25 Following contact with West Mercia Police on 6 August 2018 they advised that an 
incident had occurred at about 0050hrs on 29 July 2018. On the night the premises 
licence holder 'declined' (refused) to allow CCTV to be viewed and/or downloaded, 
although this was obtained a few days later. It did not show the incident as the 
camera that would have recorded it was damaged.

26. On 24 August 2018 a further letter was sent to the Premises Licence Holder by the 
Licensing Authority advising that the police had informed them of the further breach of 
the CCTV condition. (Appendix 7)

14



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

27. The Premises Licence Holder responded by email on 30th August 2018 advising that 
a £500.00, 8 Camera channel CCTV Swann System with a 355 day recording, had 
been being installed on 7th August 2018 and was always available to the police. 
(Appendix 8).

28. On 2 January 2019 West Mercia Police contacted the Licensing Authority with 
regards to an incident on 30 December 2018 at the premises and the breach of 
CCTV condition once again. 

29. As a result, this review was launched.

Summary of Representations

31. Representations have been received from:

Responsible Authorities - Local Authority (appendix 9) and West Mercia Police 
(appendix 10). 

Other Parties - One (1) accepted representation has been received from the local 
ward member (appendix 11).

The Local Authority representation has not been agreed. The applicant has also 
failed to engage with The Licensing Authority during or after the consultation period.

Community Impact

32. Any decision is unlikely to have any impact on the local community.

Equality duty

33. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report.

34. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and 
the residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of 
this report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood 
and/or may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close 
proximity to the premises.

35. Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has 
the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes 
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of 
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol – 
Article 1 – also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest 
and conditions provided for by law.  Members must accordingly make a decision 
which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the 
rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

Financial implications

36. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

15



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Legal Implications

37. As an application for a review of the premise licence on grounds relevant to one or 
more licensing objectives has been received the sub committee must determine this 
application in accordance with section 3.5.7 (j) of the Herefordshire Council 
constitution. In determining the application, the sub committee must have regard to 
the promotion of the licensing objectives

38. The four licensing objectives are the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; 
the prevention of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in 
exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to 
the statutory guidance under Section 182 of the Act and the Council’s own statement 
of licensing policy. The options available to the licensing authority are set out in 
section 1 of this report.

39. The Committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared 
before the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority.

40. The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: 
CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative 
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the 
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

41. In this case it was summed up that: -

A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do 
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

42. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to 
a licence with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ 
must be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions.

43. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of 
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice 
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and 
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

44. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 
enforceable condition.

Right of Appeal

45. Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:

An appeal may be made within 21 days to the Magistrates Court by the police or any 
person who has made a relevant representation and also by the premises licence 
holder once notified of the licensing authority’s decision.

16



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have 
effect until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the appeal is disposed of. 

Risk Management

46. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a 
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21 days of being notified of 
the decision in writing. 

Consultees

47. All Responsible Authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire. 

Appendices

Appendix 1 Review Application Form
Appendix 2 Variation to premises licence agreed at licensing sub committee meeting held 

on 25 September 2017
Appendix 3 Current Premise Licence
Appendix 4 Breach of Conditions Letter 03.07.2018
Appendix 5 Licence Holder Response 03.07.2018
Appendix 6 Letter to HAND Scheme
Appendix 7 Breach of Conditions Letter 24.08.2018
Appendix 8 Licence Holder Response 30.08.2018
Appendix 9 Local Authority Representation
Appendix 10. West Mercia Police Representation
Appendix 11 Other parties representation - Ward Councillor 

Background Papers

None.

17





Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 
Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

I Emma Bowell on behalf of the Licensing Authority 

  (Insert name of applicant) 
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 
Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

The Ducker 
11 South Street 

Post town   Leominster Post code (if known)  HR6 8JA 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known) 

PR00921 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

I am 
Please tick  yes 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) 
or (B) below) 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates

Appendix 1

19



(please complete (A) below) 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

Please tick  yes 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms Other title 
(for example, Rev) 

Surname First names 

Please tick  yes 
I am 18 years old or over 

Current postal 
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

Post town Post Code 

Daytime contact telephone number 

E-mail address 
(optional)  

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

Name and address 

Telephone number (if any) 

E-mail address (optional) 

20



 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

Name and address 

Emma Bowell 
Licensing Technical Officer 
Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street 
Hereford  
HR1 2PJ 

Telephone number (if any) 
01432 261761 

E-mail address (optional)  
licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

Please tick one or more boxes  
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

On three (3) separate occasions since June 2018, the premise licence holder has failed 
to comply with the CCTV condition on the premise licence which falls under the 
licensing objective Prevention of Crime & Disorder, despite receiving two warning 
letters from the authority. 

Under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 it is an offence to carry on a licensable 
activity on or from any premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an 
authorisation (premises licence). 

21



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 3) 

Following contact with West Mercia Police on 21st June 2018 and as part of the police 
proportionate investigation it was established that the CCTV for the 8th June 2018 had 
been recorded over. 

As a result of this, a breach of conditions warning letter was sent to the licence holder 
Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins on 3rd July 2018 
The condition on the licence reads: 

CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial 
recognition. Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire 
exits, outside areas, and all areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. Equipment 
MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped , 
recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 
31 days and handed to Police on demand. The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at 
all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable and competent at downloading 
CCTV footage in a recordable format EITHER DISC or VHS to the Police/Local Authority 
on demand. The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An 
operational daily log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the 
system has been checked and is compliant, in the event of any failings actions taken 
are to be recorded. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the 
Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST report the failure to the Police on contact number 
101 immediately. 

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins responded by email on 3rd July 2018 apologising for not 
having an up to date CCTV system and will update the system immediately to one that 
does a 1 month recording. 

Following contact with West Mercia Police on 6th August 2018 it was established that 
an incident occurred at about 0050hrs on 29 July 2018.  
On the night the premise licence holder 'declined' (refused) to allow CCTV to be viewed 
and/or downloaded, although this was obtained a few days later, it didn’t show the 
incident as the camera that would have recorded it, was 'damaged'. 

A further breach of conditions letter was sent to the premise licence holder on 29th July 
2018 reminding her once again of the CCTV condition on the licence and also advising 
compliance with conditions is not optional but mandatory. 
It also advised that the letter was a final written warning in respect of any breach of the 
premises licence and that should she choose to operate outside her authorisation that 
it is likely the authority will have to take more formal action, which may also include 
reviewing the premises licence.  

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins responded by email on 30th August 2018 advising that 
£500.00, 8 Camera channel CCTV Swann System with a 355 day recording, was being 
installed on 7th August 2018. 

Following further contact from West Mercia Police on 2nd January 2019, it was made 
known to us that at 2100hrs on 30th December 2018, an incident occurred at the 
premises which required the Police to access CCTV. 
West Mercia Police Officers attended at 2248hrs on the same date. 

The owner/DPS did not know how to use the system - she had been drinking on the 
night.  No one else at the premises was able to download or operate the system. 

The continual breach of the law in relation to the licence undermines the licensing 
objective – Prevention of Crime and Disorder.  

22



This does cause the authority some serious concerns, after having given at least two 
(2) previous warnings.  

Based on the significant failure by the premise licence holder/DPS (Mrs Sian Dale 
Rooke-Jenkins), the authority feels that the committee should remove Mrs Sian Dale 
Rooke-Jenkins as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS.) 

  Please tick  yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 
premises before 

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 
and when you made them 

Not applicable 

23



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                                                                                                  Please tick   
 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 
as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 
application will be rejected 

 

       
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 
 

Date             04.01.2019 
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity      Licensing Technical Officer 
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 
(optional)       

 

24



Notes for Guidance  
 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 
4. The application form must be signed. 
5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

25





APPENDIX 2 

Conditions  and Hours in respect of the –  
The Ducking Stool, Leominster 

 
Licensable Activities 
 

Live Music (Indoors)  

Sunday to Thursday  20:00 – 23:00 
Friday & Saturday  20:00 – 00:00 

Recorded Music (Indoors) 

Sunday to Thursday  19:00 – 23:00 
Friday & Saturday  19:00 – 00:00 

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 

Friday & Saturday  23:00 – 00:00 

Sale of alcohol (On & Off premises)  

Sunday to Thursday  11:00 – 00:00 
Friday & Saturday  11:00 – 01:00 

  
Licensing Conditions:  
 
Prevention of Crime 
  

1. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures 
of EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. 
Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside 
areas, and all areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. Equipment MUST be 
maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped , recordings 
MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 31 days 
and handed to Police on demand. The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all 
times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable and competent at downloading 
CCTV footage in a recordable format EITHER DISC or VHS to the Police/Local 
Authority on demand. The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a 
secure environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named 
individual. An operational daily log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, 
indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in the event of any failings 
actions taken are to be recorded. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV 
equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST report the failure to the Police on 
contact number 101 immediately 
 

2. An incident log must be kept at the premises. Incident log records will be retained for 
a period of 12 months from the date it occurred. It will made immediately available on 
request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), 
an authorised Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or the Police, which must 
record the following: 

 (a) all crimes (relevant to the licensing objectives) reported to the venue 
 (b) all ejections of patrons 
 (c) any complaints (relevant to the licensing objectives) received 
 (d) any incidents of disorder 
 (e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 

 (f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment (if 
fitted) 

27



APPENDIX 2 

 (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

3. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in Responsible alcohol retailing 
to the minimum standard of BIIAB level 1 or any equivalent training course within one 
month of the date that this condition appears on this licence. All exisiting staff shall 
be trained within 1 month of the date that this conditon first appears on the licence. 
All new staff shall be trained within one month of taking up employment. All staff shall 
be re-trained twelve monthly thereafter. Training records shall be kept on the 
premises and shall be produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of 
Herefordshire Council on demand. 
 

4. The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing will 
employ a minimum of one SIA doorstaff from 23:00 hours until the end of licensable 
activities on any day when regulated entertainment is taking place at the premises. 
 

5. The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the 
purpose will employ SIA doorstaff on a risk assessed basis. The risk assessment shall 
be in writing and shall be made immediately available on request to an ‘authorised 
person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police 
 

6. The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the 
purpose, shall maintain a register of door supervisors which shall be kept on the 
premises showing the names and addresses of the door supervisors, their badge 
numbers and shall be signed by the door supervisors as they commence and conclude 
duty. The register shall be made available on demand for inspection by an ‘authorised 
person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), or the Police or an 
authorised officer of the SIA.  
 

7. The premises shall be an active member of any locally operating Pub Watch Scheme 
(e.g.HAND) while such a scheme or similar exists. 
 

8. The DPS and all other staff shall ensure that no open vessels are taken off the 
premises by customers. 
 
 

Public Safety 
 

9. All staff shall wear clothing which identifies them as members of staff of the premises 
 
10. First aid  

A First Aid Kit capable of treating for 21-50 people shall be kept fully stocked at the 
premises and kept behind the bar. Such kit shall contain:  

 1 x Guidance Leaflet 
 60 x Washproof Plasters  
 6 x Eye Pads with Bandage  
 8 x Triangular Bandages  
 12 x Safety Pins 
 16 x Assorted Sterile Dressings  
 20 Moist Wipes 
 3 Pairs Disposable Gloves 
 

11. Electrical & Gas Installations 
 All electrical wiring and distribution systems shall be tested at least once a year and 

signed off by a competent person whose name is shown within the Local Authority 
Building Control Part P Competent Persons Register 

28



APPENDIX 2 

(http://www.competentperson.co.uk/search.asp). The sign off certificate shall be 
produced to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003) or Police on demand. 

12. Any and all gas appliances (except cellar gas) used in the premises must be tested at 
least once a year and signed off by a competent person whose name appears within 
the current Gas Safety register (GSR). The sign off certificate shall be produced to an 
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or Police on 
demand. 

 
13. Hypnotism 

The Licensed premises shall not be used for any exhibition, demonstration or 
performance of hypnotism unless the hypnotist has been licensed by the relevant Local 
Authority in England or Wales. Any performance must comply in accordance with any 
conditions attached to that licence. 

 
14. Maintenance, Repair and Cleanliness  

All parts of the premises and all fixtures and fittings therein including seating, door 
fastenings, notices, floors, carpets and furniture shall be kept clean and maintained in 
good order.   

 
15. Special Effects 

The installation and use of laser beams, pyrotechnics or real flames, explosive or 
highly flammable or smoke producing agent, for any purpose shall not be permitted 
without prior notification to the Licensing Authority.  Notification, together with a 
detailed description of the method of use, shall be made to the Licensing Authority not 
less than 14 days prior to the day on which the laser equipment is to be used.  

 
16. Strobe lights shall be operated on a fixed rate of not more than four flashes per second.  

Where more than one strobe light is used, the flashes shall be synchronised.  In any 
case, such lights shall not be installed without notify the Licensing Authority in writing.  
 

17. Disabled people 
 When disabled people are present, arrangements must exist to enable their safe 

evacuation in the event of an emergency. Details of the arrangements shall be 
recorded in writing and shall be made immediately available to an ‘authorised person’ 
(as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police on demand. 

 
18. Disabled people on the premises must be made aware of the evacuation procedure. 

 
19. Lighting 

 In the absence of adequate daylight, the lighting in any area accessible to the public, 
members or guests shall be sufficient (107 lux or more) to enable people to move about 
safely. 

 
20. Capacity limits  

 The maximum permitted numbers of persons in the premises including staff shall not 
exceed the numbers set within the fire risk assessment for the premises. 

 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

21. Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance.  
 

22. The Premises Licence Holder or DPS must immediately comply with any request to 
adjust noise levels/ frequency spectra made by an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police.  

29

http://www.competentperson.co.uk/search.asp


APPENDIX 2 

 
23. All doors and windows at the premises shall be kept closed after 2300 except during 

immediate access and egress. 
 

24. Live or Recorded music shall be restricted to the area marked on the premises plan 
 

25. Any speaker within the premises shall be directed away from any residential property 
 
26. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall be displayed 

at all exits to the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of local 
residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

 
27. Noxious smells  

No noxious smell emanating from the premises shall cause a nuisance to nearby 
properties.  

 
28. Light Pollution 

Lighting outside premises including flashing lights shall not cause a nuisance to 
nearby properties, unless written consent has been obtained from the police to the 
effect that such lighting is necessary to promote the crime prevention objective 

 
29. The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or the person in charge of the premises at the 

time, shall ensure that no alcohol is consumed in any external area of the licensed 
premises after 23:30 and that the doors to and from that area are kept closed except 
for immediate ingress and egress after this time. 
 

30. No regualated entertainment shall be provided outside of the premises at any time. 
 

31. The rear garden shall not be used by customers prior to 9am on any day. 
 

32. There shall be no new entry or re-entry to the premises after 23:30 hours on any day 
except in an emergency in which case this will be logged. The log shall show the time 
of the incident, the emergency service attending and the type of incident. The log 
shall be made immediately available to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police on demand. 

 
 
Protection of children from harm 
 

33. No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted to be on the premises after 
2200 hours other than a member of staff employed at the premises or a child of the 
premises licence holder or DPS and then only when supervised by a person of 18. 
 

34. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down 
and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised 
person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the police or an 
authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and 
legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall also be displayed at all entrances 
to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any bar advertising the 
scheme operated. 

 
35. No adult entertainment or services or activities must take place at the premises (Adult 

Entertainment includes, but is not restricted to, such entertainment or services which 
would generally include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-table, or pole-dancing, 
performances involving feigned  violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual 
acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong and offensive language).  

30



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Part A - Premises Licence  

 
Premises licence number – PR00921 (App Vary Premises Licence)  
 
Part 1 - Premises details  
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  

THE DUCKER 
11 SOUTH STREET  
 
Post town LEOMINSTER Postcode HR6 8JA 

Telephone number 01568 610803 
 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 
 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence  

Live Music (Indoors) 
Recorded Music (Indoors) 
Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption on and off the premises) 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  

Live Music 
Sunday – Thursday  20:00 – 23:00 
Friday – Saturday  20:00 – 00:00 
 
Recorded Music 
Sunday – Thursday  19:00 – 23:00 
Friday – Saturday  19:00 – 00:00 
 
Late Night Refreshement 
Friday – Saturday  23:00 – 00:00 
 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday – Thursday  11:00 – 00:00 
Friday – Saturday  11:00 – 01:00 
 

 
The opening hours of the premises  

Sunday – Thursday 07:00 – 23:00 
Friday – Saturday 07:00 – 01:00 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 

For consumption on and off the premises 
 

 

31



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

Part 2  
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence  

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 
11 South Street 
Leominster 
Herefordshire 
HR6 8JA 
 
07817 079362 
sianrj@yahoo.com 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  

Not applicable 
 

 
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol  

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 
11 South Street 
Leominster 
Herefordshire 
HR6 8JA 
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  

Licence number: PL2599 
Issuing authority: Herefordshire Council 
 

 
 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 
Irresponsible Drinks Promotions 
1.   (1)   The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 

activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the 
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—  
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to—  
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or  

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  

 
 
 
 
 

32

mailto:sianrj@yahoo.com


 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of 
drunkenness in any favourable manner;  

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 
Free Drinking Water 
2.   The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available.  
 
Age verification 
3.  (1)   The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 
policy.  

(3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and 
either—  
(a) a holographic mark, or  
(b) an ultraviolet feature.  

 
Small Measures 
4.  The responsible person must ensure that—  

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 
customers in the following measures—  
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;  

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and  

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 
Below Cost Price 
 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  
 
Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 
No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-  

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 
licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

 

33



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 
holds a personal licence. 
 
Door supervision 
Each individual required to carry out a security activity must be licensed by the Security Industry 
Authority 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  
 
General 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder: 
Public Safety: 
Prevention of Public Nuisance: 
Protection of Children: 
 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 25th September 
2017 
 
Prevention of Crime 
 
CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of 
EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. Cameras shall 
encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and all areas where 
the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be 
correctly time and date stamped , recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially 
and kept for a period of 31 days and handed to Police on demand. The Premises Licence Holder 
must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable and competent at 
downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format EITHER DISC or VHS to the Police/Local 
Authority on demand. The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An operational 
daily log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been 
checked and is compliant, in the event of any failings actions taken are to be recorded. In the 
event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST report 
the failure to the Police on contact number 101 immediately 
 
An incident log must be kept at the premises. Incident log records will be retained for a period of 
12 months from the date it occurred. It will made immediately available on request to an 
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), an authorised 
Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or the Police, which must record the following: 
 (a) all crimes (relevant to the licensing objectives) reported to the venue 
 (b) all ejections of patrons 
 (c) any complaints (relevant to the licensing objectives) received 
 (d) any incidents of disorder 
 (e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
 (f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment (if fitted) 
 (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 
All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in Responsible Alcohol Retailing to the 
minimum standard of BIIAB 1 or any other equivalent training course within one month of the date 
this condition appears on the licence.  All new staff shall be trained within one month of taking up 
employment. All staff shall be retrained six monthly thereafter.  Training records shall be kept on 
the premises, which shall record the identity of the staff member, training received, and the date 

34



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

of that training.  That record of training shall be made immediately available on request to an 
‘Authorised Person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised 
Trading Standards Officer or the Police. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing will employ a 
minimum of one SIA door staff from 23:00 hours until the end of licensable activities on any day 
when regulated entertainment is taking place at the premises. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the purpose 
will employ SIA door staff on a risk assessed basis. The risk assessment shall be in writing and 
shall be made immediately available on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police 
 
The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the purpose, 
shall maintain a register of door supervisors which shall be kept on the premises showing the 
names and addresses of the door supervisors, their badge numbers and shall be signed by the 
door supervisors as they commence and conclude duty. The register shall be made available on 
demand for inspection by an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003), or the Police or an authorised officer of the SIA.  
 
The premises shall be an active member of any locally operating Pub Watch Scheme (e.g.HAND) 
while such a scheme or similar exists. 
 
The DPS and all other staff shall ensure that no open vessels are taken off the premises by 
customers. 
 
Public Safety 
 
All staff shall wear clothing which identifies them as members of staff of the premises 
 
First aid  
A First Aid Kit capable of treating for 21-50 people shall be kept fully stocked at the premises and 
kept behind the bar. Such kit shall contain:  
1 x Guidance Leaflet 
60 x Wash proof Plasters  
6 x Eye Pads with Bandage  
8 x Triangular Bandages  
12 x Safety Pins 
16 x Assorted Sterile Dressings  
20 Moist Wipes 
3 Pairs Disposable Gloves 
 
Electrical & Gas Installations 
All electrical wiring and distribution systems shall be tested at least once a year and signed off by 
a competent person whose name is shown within the Local Authority Building Control Part P 
Competent Persons Register (http://www.competentperson.co.uk/search.asp). The sign off 
certificate shall be produced to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing 
Act 2003) or Police on demand. 
Any and all gas appliances (except cellar gas) used in the premises must be tested at least once 
a year and signed off by a competent person whose name appears within the current Gas Safety 
register (GSR). The sign off certificate shall be produced to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or Police on demand. 
 
 
 

35



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

 
Hypnotism 
The Licensed premises shall not be used for any exhibition, demonstration or performance of 
hypnotism unless the hypnotist has been licensed by the relevant Local Authority in England or 
Wales. Any performance must comply in accordance with any conditions attached to that licence. 
 
Maintenance, Repair and Cleanliness  
All parts of the premises and all fixtures and fittings therein including seating, door fastenings, 
notices, floors, carpets and furniture shall be kept clean and maintained in good order.   
 
Special Effects 
The installation and use of laser beams, pyrotechnics or real flames, explosive or highly 
flammable or smoke producing agent, for any purpose shall not be permitted without prior 
notification to the Licensing Authority.  Notification, together with a detailed description of the 
method of use, shall be made to the Licensing Authority not less than 14 days prior to the day on 
which the laser equipment is to be used.  
 
Strobe lights shall be operated on a fixed rate of not more than four flashes per second.  Where 
more than one strobe light is used, the flashes shall be synchronised.  In any case, such lights 
shall not be installed without notify the Licensing Authority in writing.  
 
Disabled people 
When disabled people are present, arrangements must exist to enable their safe evacuation in 
the event of an emergency. Details of the arrangements shall be recorded in writing and shall be 
made immediately available to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing 
Act 2003) or the Police on demand. 
 
Disabled people on the premises must be made aware of the evacuation procedure. 
 
Lighting 
In the absence of adequate daylight, the lighting in any area accessible to the public, members or 
guests shall be sufficient (107 lux or more) to enable people to move about safely. 
 
Capacity limits 
The maximum permitted numbers of persons in the premises including staff shall not exceed the 
numbers set within the fire risk assessment for the premises. 
 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance.  
 
The Premises Licence Holder or DPS must immediately comply with any request to adjust noise 
levels/ frequency spectra made by an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the 
Licensing Act 2003) or the Police.  
 
All doors and windows at the premises shall be kept closed after 2300 except during immediate 
access and egress. 
 
Live or Recorded music shall be restricted to the area marked on the premises plan 
 
Any speaker within the premises shall be directed away from any residential property 
 

36



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall be displayed at all exits 
to the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the 
premises and the area quietly. 
Noxious smells  
No noxious smell emanating from the premises shall cause a nuisance to nearby properties.  
 
Light Pollution 
Lighting outside premises including flashing lights shall not cause a nuisance to nearby 
properties, unless written consent has been obtained from the police to the effect that such 
lighting is necessary to promote the crime prevention objective 
 
The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or the person in charge of the premises at the time, shall 
ensure that no alcohol is consumed in any external area of the licensed premises after 23:30 and 
that the doors to and from that area are kept closed except for immediate ingress and egress 
after this time. 
 
No regulated entertainment shall be provided outside of the premises at any time. 
 
The rear garden shall not be used by customers prior to 9am on any day. 
 
There shall be no new entry or re-entry to the premises after 23:30 hours on any day except in an 
emergency in which case this will be logged. The log shall show the time of the incident, the 
emergency service attending and the type of incident. The log shall be made immediately 
available to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the 
Police on demand. 
 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
 
No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted to be on the premises after 2200 hours 
other than a member of staff employed at the premises or a child of the premises licence holder 
or DPS and then only when supervised by a person of 18. 
 
The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and kept at 
the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person’ (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the police or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of 
Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall 
also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any 
bar advertising the scheme operated. 
 
A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who 
have been unable to provide required identification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept 
for a period of 12 months. It will be collected and reviewed on a weekly basis by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire 
Council on demand. 
 
 
No adult entertainment or services or activities must take place at the premises (Adult 
Entertainment includes, but is not restricted to, such entertainment or services which would 
generally include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-table, or pole-dancing, performances involving 
feigned  violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment 
involving strong and offensive language). 
 
 

37



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

Annex 4 - Plans  
 
As attached 

38



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Part B - Premises Licence Summary  

 
Premises licence number – PR00921 (App to Vary Premises Licence) 
 
Premises details 
  
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
THE DUCKER 
11 SOUTH STREET 
 
Post town LEOMINSTER Post code HR9 8JA 

Telephone number 01568 614403 
 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not applicable 
 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
Live Music (Indoors) 
Recorded Music (Indoors) 
Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol (Consumption on and off the premises) 
 

 
Live Music 
Sunday – Thursday  20:00 – 23:00 
Friday – Saturday  20:00 – 00:00 
 
Recorded Music 
Sunday – Thursday  19:00 – 23:00 
Friday – Saturday  19:00 – 00:00 
 
Late Night Refreshement 
Friday – Saturday  23:00 – 00:00 
 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday – Thursday  11:00 – 00:00 
Friday – Saturday  11:00 – 01:00 

 
The opening hours of the premises 
Sunday – Thursday 07:00 – 23:00 
Friday – Saturday 07:00 – 01:00 
 

 

39



 
Appendix 3 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

 
 

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence 
 
Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 
11 South Street 
Leominster 
Herefordshire 
HR6 8JA 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
For consumption on and off the premises 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
Not applicable 
 

 
Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of 
alcohol 
Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 
 

 
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 
 
The Premise shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy 
No adult entertainment or services or activities must take place at the premises 
 

 
 
 

40



 
Appendix 4 

 

8 St Owen Street, Hereford, HR1 2PJ 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk | facebook: hfdscouncil | twitter: @hfdscouncil 

Economy, communities and corporate 
Director: Geoff Hughes 

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 
11 South Street 
Leominster 
Herefordshire 
HR6 8JA 
 

Your Ref: 

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct line / Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

PR00921 

Licensing  

(01432) 261761 

(01432) 261982 

licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

3rd July 2018 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
THE DUCKERS 
 
I refer to the premises licence issued in respect of the above premises.  
 
A premise licence is issued authorising the use of the premises for certain licensable activities, the times of 
operating and the conditions are to be complied with. 
 
Following a contact with West Mercia Police on 20th June 2018 and as part of the police proportionate 
investigation it was established that the CCTV for the 08 June had been recorded over. 
 
Please may I remind you that your premise licence has the following condition with particular attention brought to 
the wording in bold? 
 
CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of EVIDENTIAL 
QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. Cameras shall encompass all ingress and 
egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and all areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. 
Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped , recordings 
MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 31 days and handed to 
Police on demand. The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff 
is capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format EITHER DISC or VHS to the 
Police/Local Authority on demand. The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An operational daily log report 
must be maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in the 
event of any failings actions taken are to be recorded. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment 
the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST report the failure to the Police on contact number 101 immediately 
 
Under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 it is an offence to carry on a licensable activity on or from any 
premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation (premises licence). This offence on 
summary conviction is punishable with six months imprisonment and/or an unlimited fine. 
 
In line with this Authority’s Policy, I must advise you that should you choose to operate outside your authorisation 
we may take enforcement action against you. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
EMMA BOWELL 
LICENSING TECHNICAL OFFICER 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND TRADING STANDARDS 
 
CC: WEST MERCIA POLICE 

41





From: Sian Rooke-Jenkins
To: Licensing
Cc: Police Licensing
Subject: Re: The Duckers - Breach of conditions letter
Date: 03 July 2018 16:27:25
Attachments: image001.png

Dear Emma Bowell,

I am e-mailing to apologise for not having an up to date CCTV system.  The one at The Ducker
Leominster Ltd at present is only a 7 day recording system which was already set up when we took
over in July last year.

We will up date the System immediately to one that does a 1 month recording.

I also spoke to PC Gareth Murdoch today at the Hand Ban Meeting who informed me of this.

Yours sincerely

Sian D Rooke-Jenkins
Licensee of The Ducker Leominster Ltd.

On Tuesday, 3 July 2018, 15:39:42 BST, Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> wrote:

Good afternoon

Please see attached

Many thanks

Licensing Section

Herefordshire Council

Tel: 01432 261761

Fax: 01432 261982

Email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk

Post: Licensing Section, 8 St. Owens Street, Hereford, HR1 2PJ

Image

Please note: - Licensing operate an up to 5 working day call/email back
system. For all work related emails, please send to
licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk

Council's Homepage www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
Any opinion expressed in this email or any attached files are those of the individual and not
necessarily those of Herefordshire Council. This email and any attached files are confidential and
intended solely for the use of the addressee. This communication may contain material protected by

Appendix 5

43

mailto:sianrj@yahoo.com
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing.herefordshire@westmercia.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/





Appendix 6 

 

 
From: Spriggs, Fred  
Sent: 27 July 2018 14:26 
To: Turner, Debbie <Debbie.Turner@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Cc: 'Mooney,James' <james.mooney@westmercia.pnn.police.uk>; 'Reynolds,Duncan' 
<duncan.reynolds@westmercia.pnn.police.uk> 
Subject: Message to HAND from the Licensing Authority 
 
Hi Debbie 
Can you circulate this to all HAND groups? 
Thanks 
Fred 
 
Hi to all 
It has come to the attention of the Licensing Authority that there are some premises that are not 
complying with the conditions of their licence. 
Following a police investigation which required them visiting a number of premises to view the 
CCTV, it was found that many of the premises did not have the 31 days CCTV required under the 
licence and also no one was available to operate the CCTV. 
In all cases the police investigation was hindered by the CCTV not being available. 
Both the police and Licensing Authority view this as an extremely serious breach of the licence. Such 
breaches may result in your licence being reviewed or more formal action being taken against 
you  by way of prosecution. 
To make it clear where you fail to comply with a condition attached to your licence, your licence 
ceases to have effect and any licensable activity you carry on at the premises is unauthorised. This is 
an offence under the act and carries a maximum of 6 months imprisonment and/or an unlimited 
fine. 
Can you therefore check the terms of your licence and ensure compliance. 
Best wishes 
Fred Spriggs 
 
 

45

mailto:Debbie.Turner@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:james.mooney@westmercia.pnn.police.uk
mailto:duncan.reynolds@westmercia.pnn.police.uk




 

 
Appendix 7 

 

8 St Owen Street, Hereford, HR1 2PJ 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk | facebook: hfdscouncil | twitter: @hfdscouncil 

Economy, communities and corporate 
Director: Geoff Hughes 

Mrs Sian Dale Rooke-Jenkins 
11 South Street 
Leominster 
Herefordshire 
HR6 8JA 
 

Your Ref: 

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct line / Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

PR00921 

Licensing  

(01432) 261761 

(01432) 261982 

licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

24th August 2018 
 
Dear Mrs Rooke-Jenkins 
 
THE DUCKERS 
 
I refer to the premises licence issued in respect of the above premises.  
 
A premise licence is issued authorising the use of the premises for certain licensable activities, the 
times of operating and the conditions are to be complied with. 
 
It is with regret that the Licensing Authority has to write you again, following a further breach of the 
CCTV condition on your licence, which is alleged to have occurred at about 0050hrs on 29 July 2018 
when an incident occurred. It is stated that you were present and refused to download the CCTV at 
the time and that it was not obtained until a few days later. When the CCTV footage was obtained, it 
was found that the camera that should be covering that area was broken.  
 
May I remind you that your premise licence has the following condition with particular attention brought 
to by the wording in bold? 
 
CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of 
EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. Cameras shall 
encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and all areas where the 
sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be 
correctly time and date stamped , recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and 
kept for a period of 31 days and handed to Police on demand. The Premises Licence Holder must 
ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable and competent at 
downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format EITHER DISC or VHS to the Police/Local 
Authority on demand. The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An operational daily 
log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is 
compliant, in the event of any failings actions taken are to be recorded. In the event of technical failure 
of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST report the failure to the Police on 
contact number 101 immediately 
 
Under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 it is an offence to carry on a licensable activity on or from 
any premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation (premises licence). This 
offence on summary conviction is punishable with six months imprisonment and/or an unlimited fine. 
 
This letter is your final written warning in respect of any breach of the premises licence. I must advise 
you that should you choose to operate outside your authorisation that it is likely we will have to take 
more formal action against you, which may also include reviewing the premises licence.  

47



8 St Owen Street, Hereford, HR1 2PJ 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk | facebook: hfdscouncil | twitter: @hfdscouncil 

Compliance with your conditions is not optional but mandatory. 
 
Should you require further information then please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
FRED SPRIGGS 
LICENSING OFFICER 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND TRADING STANDARDS 
 
CC: WEST MERCIA POLICE 

48



Appendix 8

From: Sian Rooke-Jenkins 
Sent: 30 August 2018 19:16
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk>
Cc: Police Licensing <licensing.herefordshire@westmercia.pnn.police.uk>
Subject: Re: The Duckers - Breach of conditions letter

For Attention of Fred Spriggs, Licensing Officer.

In regards to the letter sent to me on 24th August 2018, Ref: PR00921.

Please see the e-mail above of the 3rd July 2018 and I also spoke directly to you at the Hand Band 
Meeting in Leominster on Tuesday 7th August 2018, when I informed you that our new £500.00, 8 
Camera channel CCTV Swann System with a 355 day recording, was being installed that day.

We now have 2 camera's pointing in either direction as well outside of the premises which will help 
the Police even more as twice in the past they have come to us to download footage of South Street 
of incidents that have been nothing to do with our Premises but CCTV footage from here was clearer 
than the Council's one.

I do not like or appreciate the tone of your letter as I have done nothing but be as helpful as I can with 
the Police and have always given them what they require.

I have an unblemished history of bar work and being a licencee and intend on keeping it that way.  
Mrs. Debbie Stringer of the CCTV Herefordshire Council and Mr Andrew Woods Chair of Leominster 
Hand have both seen our new system and can confirm that all 8 camera's are up and running and 
beautifully clear.

The incident you speak of was a Domestic one between my Partner and myself and the Police did not 
require the CCTV footage on the night it happened.  They only requested it the next day when I 
downloaded it and gave it to them.

I do not require any further warnings as this system has been up and running since I spoke to you and 
will always be available to the Police if required.

Regards.

Sian Rooke-Jenkins
Licensee of The Ducker Leominster Ltd
On Tuesday, 3 July 2018, 16:27:16 BST, Sian Rooke-Jenkins <sianrj@yahoo.com> wrote: 

Dear Emma Bowell,

I am e-mailing to apologise for not having an up to date CCTV system.  The one at The Ducker 
Leominster Ltd at present is only a 7 day recording system which was already set up when we took 
over in July last year.

We will up date the System immediately to one that does a 1 month recording.

I also spoke to PC Gareth Murdoch today at the Hand Ban Meeting who informed me of this.

Yours sincerely

Sian D Rooke-Jenkins
Licensee of The Ducker Leominster Ltd.

49

mailto:sianrj@yahoo.com




Appendix 9 

Representation made by the Local Authority 31st January 2019 
 
I am an officer authorised under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
I refer to the application made for a review of a premise licence in respect of ‘The Ducker, 11 
South Street, Leominster. 

The application states there have been breaches of the licence conditions on a number of 
occasions with regards to CCTV condition. 

Having looked at the application in further detail, the local authority seeks the below 
conditions to be added to the premise licence in relation to CCTV 

 

• The premises shall have a written log which deals purely with checks made to ensure 
the CCTV system is operating correctly. This log shall be completed prior to the 
premises opening for Licensable Activities and will have the following information 
written down in the log:- 

1. The date and time checked 
2. Name of person checking the system (In block capitals) 
3. The person signature 
4. Whether the system is working correctly or not 
5. Where the system is not working correctly the details of the defective 

including the action taken to rectify the defect and the time frame for doing so. 
6. Prior to the premises opening any defect shall be reported to the police via 

email to licensing.herefordshire@westmercia.pnn.police.uk 
 

The CCTV log shall be kept on the premises and shall be produced to the police or 
an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) on 
demand. 

• All staff, prior to selling alcohol at the premises, must be trained in the use of the 
CCTV to a standard which ensures they can comply with the CCTV condition as 
shown on the licence. The training must be carried out by a professional company 
approved by the Licensing Authority.  Training records shall be kept on the premises 
and shall be produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) on demand. These are the minimum conditions the 
Licensing Authority would wish to see applied to the premise licence. 

 
 
Emma Bowell 
Licensing Technical Officer 
 

 

 

51

mailto:licensing.herefordshire@westmercia.pnn.police.uk




Premises Incident Details 
PID: 2460  

Between: 20/07/2017  and 21/01/2019  

Printed on: 21/01/2019Page 1 of 2 

Premises Name: THE DUCKERS (DUCKING STOOL) 
Premises Type: PUBLIC HOUSE Licence Type: Sale by retail of alcohol 

Registering 
Authority: 

Herefordshire Council Premises Status: Live 

Sales BOTH 
PremLH:   SIAN ROOKE-JENKINS 
Address:   THE DUCKERS (THE DUCKING 

STOOL 
11 SOUTH STREET 
LEOMINSTER 
HEREFORDSHIRE 
HR9 8JA 

Incidents: 
1. Date: 30/12/2018 21:00
Description: ASSAULT 
A CUSTOMER ENTERED THE PREMISES INTOXICATED WHO IS KNOWN TO BE AN ALCOHOLIC CALLED 
XX. THE MALE EMPTIED HIS WALLET ONTO THE BAR AND WAS THEN ASKED TO LEAVE THE BAR. HE
WAS THEN EJECTED FROM THE PUB BY THE DPS ' PARTNER.  
WHEN EJECTING THE MALE KICKED THE IP IN THE GROIN AREA AND WAS FORCEFULLY REMOVED 
IN A BEAR HUG AND TAKEN OUTSIDE. THE IP WAS ASSISTED BY HIS COUSIN WHO HELD THE 
SUSPECT MALE AGAINST THE WALL OUTSIDE. THE SUSPECT THEN THREW A PUNCH AT THE IP 
MAKING CONTACT. THE 2ND MALE WHO WAS ASSISTING PUSHED THE SUSPECT  BACK WITH 2 
OPEN HANDS UPON WHICH THE SUSPECT FELL BACKWARDS ONTO THE FLOOR BANGING HIS HEAD 
AND CAUSE AN INJURY WHERE IT BLED. THE SUSPECT WAS TAKEN TO HEREFORD A+E. 

WHEN OFFICERS ATTENDED LATER THAT SAME EVENING AT 2248HRS TO DOWNLOAD THE CCTV TO 
A WEST MERCIA USB STICK (PUMA).  
THE DPS HAD CLEARLY BEEN DRINKING BUT WAS NOT DRUNK. HER PARTNER THE ORIGINAL IP 
WAS VERY INTOXICATED AND DRUNK.  
IT WAS EXPLAINED TO THE DPS THAT THE CCTV FOOTAGE WAS REQUIRED BY THE OFFICERS AND 
IT WAS TO BE DOWNLOADED TO THE USB STICK THEY WERE PROVIDING.  
THE DPS AND HER PARTNER WERE NOT ABLE TO DOWNLOAD THE FOOTAGE AS THEY DID NOT 
KNOW HOW TO DO IT. THEY HAD A HAND-WRITTEN GUIDE COMPLETED BY A FRIEND BUT WERE 
STILL NOT ABLE TO DOWNLOAD THE FOOTAGE FOR THE OFFICERS. IT WAS POINTED OUT THAT 
THEIR LICENCE STATED 'THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER MUST ENSURE AT ALL TIMES A DPS OR 
APPOINTED MEMBER OF STAFF IS CAPABLE AND COMPETENT AT DOWNLOADING CCTV FOOTAGE IN 
A RECORDABLE FORMAT EITHER DISC OR VHS TO THE POLICE/LOCAL AUTHORITY ON DEMAND' –  

THEY WERE NOT ABLE TO DO THIS. OFFICERS WERE AT THE LOCATION FOR AROUND AN HOUR 
WHILE THEY ATTEMPTED WITHOUT SUCCESS TO DOWNLOAD IT. 
BREACH OF CCTV CONDITION 

Appendix 10

53



Premises Incident Details 
PID: 2460       

Between: 20/07/2017  and 21/01/2019     

 

Printed on: 21/01/2019Page 2 of 2 

2.  Date: 28/07/2018 23:30 
Description: COMMON ASSAULT – ASSAULT ON DPS 
THE SUSPECT AND THE IP HAVE BEEN IN A RELATIONSHIP FOR AROUND 3 YEARS AND HAVE 
RECENTLY TAKEN OVER OWNERSHIP OF THE DUCKER BAR (DUCKING STOOL). THIS EVENING, THE 
IP HAS BEEN RUNNING THE BAR WHILE THE SUSPECT HAS BEEN DRINKING SINCE AROUND 3PM. 
WITNESSES HAVE BEEN THERE FOR THE MOST OF THE DAY.  
THE SUSPECT HAS BECOME MORE AND MORE DRUNK AS THE DAY HAS GONE ON. A 
CONFRONTATION HAS BROKEN OUT BETWEEN THE IP AND THE SUSPECT AND HE HAS BEEN STOOD 
IN HER FACE SHOUTING AND SWEARING.  
HE HAS THEN PUSHED THE IP BACKWARDS ONTO THE POOL TABLE, AND LATER PUSHED HER 
AGAINST A WALL. HE HAS TAKEN HIMSELF TO BED AND THEN WAS ARRESTED FOR ASSAULT. 
THE VICTIM HAS DECLINED TO MAKE A COMPLAINT AND DUE TO THIS SHE HAS REFUSED THE 
POLICE ACCESS TO THE CCTV. 
BREACH OF CCTV CONDITION 
 
3.  Date: 08/06/2018 19:00 
Description: ASSAULT ON STAFF – DPS 
SIAN ROOKE-JENKINS IS THE LICENSEE OF A BAR IN LEOMINSTER CALLED 'THE DUCKER'.  SHE 
RESIDES ABOVE THE LOCATION WITH HER PARTNER XX.   
DURING THE EVENING OF FRIDAY 8 JUNE 2018 SIAN AND XX HAS ISSUES WITH A CUSTOMER 
CALLED XX.  XX WAS APPARENTLY CAUSING ISSUES FOR A FEMALE BAR STAFF AND SO WAS ASKED 
TO LEAVE BY THE OWNERS PARTNER.   
XX REACTED ANGRILY AND GRABBED THE OWNERS PARTNER AROUND THE THROAT, PUSHING XX 
HEAD IN TO THE BAR.  XX MANAGED TO PUSH XX AWAY, BEFORE XX PUSHED XX ON THE FLOOR 
AND HIT HIS HEAD AGAINST A WALL.  SIAN GRABBED HOLD OF XX TO PULL HIM AWAY FROM XX, 
BUT XX MANAGED TO TWIST SIAN'S ARM, CAUSING BRUISING.  OTHER CUSTOMERS THEN 
MANAGED TO PULL XX AWAY FROM XX AT WHICH POINT XX LEFT THE PREMISES.   
SIAN DID NOT REPORT THE MATTER TO POLICE AT THE TIME AS SHE CONSIDERED BANNING XX TO 
BE SUFFICIENT.   
THE MATTER WAS APPARENTLY CAUGHT ON THE BAR CCTV, BUT THIS IS ONLY HELD FOR 7 DAYS 
BEFORE BEING RECORDED OVER.   
THE CCTV FOOTAGE HAS BEEN RECORDED OVER AND IS CONSEQUENTLY NO LONGER AVAILABLE. 
BREACH OF CCTV CONDITION 
  
 

     
 

54



Appendix 11 

ELI PREM G – 11 Memo to Responsible Authorities    1     Issue 3 (07/09) 

MEMORANDUM 
To : LICENSING ASSISTANT 

 
From : CLLR Jenny BARTLETT, LEOMINSTER EAST 

 
Tel :  My Ref :  

 
Date : 30th January 2019 

 
Your Ref :  

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISE LICENCE  
THE DUCKER 
 
Having assessed the above application, I would like to make the following representation: 

Representation Industry 
Guidance 

PREVENTION OF CRIME & DISORDER 
Working CCTV is a mandatory condition and underpins all four licencing 
objectives. Three breaches of this requirement is very serious. 
There is reference to a damaged camera which failed to record an 
incident as well. 
This has undermined all the good work that Sian Dale Roooke - Jenkins 
did when she took over the premises. Building good will with the 
neighbouring residents and stopping the worst of the late night noise and 
music that had been a regular nuisance under previous ownership. This 
includes reducing the hours of operation and open door policy after 
consultation with the local residents. 
The replacement of the CCTV with a new system is welcomed, but this 
is negated by not making sure she and her staff had been trained to use 
it. 
There is also reference to her having been drinking on the night of 2nd 
January but does not clarify if this was whilst at The Duckers and whilst 
acting as the Designated Premise Supervisor for that night. 
 
Given the hard work to integrate this pub into the community I would like 
to see an outcome that does not destroy the good will built up with the 
present licence holder. 
 
These breaches must be redressed and not happen again. If the new 
CCTV system in place is working properly then the problem is the lack of 
training for the licence holder and staff has not been addressed. 
If training is undertaken and checked as other training is, then could the 
licence holder stay in place and continue to keep the pub on good terms 
with the neighbouring residents as it is now? 
 
 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 
 

 

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 

 

55



 

    2 

 
 
PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM 
 
 
 

 

 

REFERENCES 

Please Reference the industry guidance from which your representation has been 

sourced. 
 

 
 
OFFICER 
POSITION 
AUTHORITY 
 

 

56



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Meeting: Licensing sub-committee

Meeting date: Thursday 7 March 2019
Title of report: Application for a review of a premises licence 

in respect of The Taste of Raj, 67 St Owen 
Street, Hereford. HR1 2JQ– Licensing Act 
2003

Report by: Licensing technical officer

Classification

Open

Key Decision 

This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected

Hereford - Central

Purpose
To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of The Taste of Raj, 
67 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2JQ called by Police Sergeant 3456 Reynolds of West 
Mercia Police.

Recommendation

THAT:

The Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give 
appropriate weight to:

 The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,
 The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
 The Guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and
 The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 - 2020.
 The application for review

Options

1. There are a number of option open to the committee in relation to the application:

57

AGENDA ITEM 5



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

 modify  any of the conditions of the premises licence;

 exclude  any of the licensable activities 

 remove  the designated premises supervisor;

 suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and

 revoke  the licence

2. Where the authority takes a step mentioned in bullet point 1 and 2 above it may 
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not 
exceeding three months) as it may specify.

3. Alternatively the licensing authority could determine that no action is required to 
promote the licensing objectives or they could issue an informal warning in writing to 
the Premises Licence Holder and/or to recommend improvement within a specified 
period of time.

Reasons for Recommendations

4. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Key Considerations

5. The licensing authority must take into account any relevant representations made.
Relevant representations are those that:

 relate to one or more of the licensing objectives;
 have not been withdrawn; and
 are made by the premises licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested 

party

6. The details of the application are:

Applicant Police Sergeant 3456 Reynolds of West Mercia Police

Solicitor Not applicable

Type of 
application:

Review

Date received:

11 January 2019

28 Days consultation  ended

8 February 2019

7. A copy of the application for the review is attached (appendix 1)

8. Copies of the review application were sent to the Premise Licence Holder and 
responsible authorities.

9. In summary West Mercia Police’s grounds for the review are:

58



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

The premises were subject to a visit from West Mercia Police and UK Border Agency 
and two (2) persons were found to be working at the premises who had no right to 
work or be in the UK.

Premises History

10. The premises was first licensed in July 2005 as a restaurant for Late Night 
Refreshment. Since it has been licensed, there have been no changes to the licence.

Current Licence

11. The current licence (appendix 2) authorises the following licensable activities during 
the hours shown:

Provision of late night refreshment & Sale by retail of alcohol

On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve from 10 am 
to 12midnight.
On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, and on Good Friday: 12 
noon to 11:30pm
On Christmas Day: 12 noon to 11:30pm; for residential licence only from 12 noon to 
10.30 with a break of four hours beginning at 3pm.
On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the 
following day, midnight on 31st December).

Circumstances leading to the review

12. As part of a joint partnership, an operation took place on Monday 17 December 2018.

13. At 17:59hrs officers from the UK Border and Immigration Agency, supported by 
officers from West Mercia Police, attended the premises known as ‘The Taste of Raj’. 
The visit was intelligence lead.

14. The premises were searched and two males were detained as it was established that
neither had an entitlement to be in the UK or to work in the UK. Both denied working 
at the premises, but admitted living above the premises.

15. The employment of illegal immigrants is a serious criminal offence and undermines 
the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and disorder.

16. As a result, this review was launched.

Summary of Representations

17. Representations have been received from Trading Standards (appendix 3) and West 
Mercia Police (appendix 4). These have not been agreed and the Premises Licence 
Holder has failed to engage with the responsible authorities.  West Mercia Police 
have also submitted further information to support their application for review 
(appendix 5).

Community Impact

18. Any decision is unlikely to have any impact on the local community.

59



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Equality duty

19. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report.

20. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and 
the residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of 
this report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood 
and/or may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close 
proximity to the premises.

21. Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has 
the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes 
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of 
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol – 
Article 1 – also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest 
and conditions provided for by law.  Members must accordingly make a decision 
which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the 
rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

Financial implications

22. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

Legal Implications

23. As an application for a review of the premise licence on grounds relevant to one or 
more licensing objectives has been received the sub committee must determine this 
application in accordance with section 3.5.7 (j) of the Herefordshire Council 
constitution. In determining the application, the sub committee must have regard to 
the promotion of the licensing objectives

24. The four licensing objectives are the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; 
the prevention of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in 
exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to 
the statutory guidance under Section 182 of the Act and the Council’s own statement 
of licensing policy. The options available to the licensing authority are set out in 
section 1 of this report.

25. The Committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared 
before the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority.

26. The Committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared 
before the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority.
The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: 
CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative 
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the 
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

27. In this case it was summed up that: -

60



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do 
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

28. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to 
a licence with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ 
must be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions.

29. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of 
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice 
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and 
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

30. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 
enforceable condition.

Right of Appeal

31. Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:

An appeal may be made within 21 days to the Magistrates Court by the police or any 
person who has made a relevant representation and also by the premises licence 
holder once notified of the licensing authority’s decision.

The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have 
effect until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the appeal is disposed of. 

Risk Management

32. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a 
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21days of being notified of 
the decision in writing. 

Consultees

33. All responsible authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire. 

Appendices

Appendix 1 Review Application Form
Appendix 2 Current Premise Licence
Appendix 3 Trading Standards Representation
Appendix 4 West Mercia Police Representation
Appendix 5 Further Information received from West Mercia Police

Background Papers
None.

61





Appendix 1

63



64



65



66



67



68



Appendix 2 
 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Part A - Premises Licence  

 
Premises licence number  PR00208  (Conversion)  
 
 
Part 1 - Premises details  
 
 
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET  
 
Post town  HEREFORD Postcode  HR1 2JQ 

Telephone number  01432 351075 
 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not applicable 
 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence (All indoors unless otherwise stated) 
Provision of refreshment or alcohol 
1. Provision of late night refreshment 
2. Sale by retail of alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  

(1) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve from 10 
am to 12midnight. 

(2) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, and on Good Friday: 
12 noon to 11:30pm 

(3) On Christmas Day: 12 noon to 11:30pm; For residential licence only from 12 noon 
to 10.30 with a break of four hours beginning at 3pm. 

(4) On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the 
start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours 
on the following day, midnight on 31st December). 

 
 

 
The opening hours of the premises  
Plus 30 minutes to the end of the hours shown above. 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
On the premises 
 

 

69



Part 2  
 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  
Mr Ataur Rahman 
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET 
HEREFORD 
HR1 2JQ 
Telephone: (Day-time) 01432 351075 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  
Not applicable 
 

 
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises the supply of alcohol  
Mr Ataur Rahman 
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET 
HEREFORD 
HR1 2JQ 
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence number: 153 
Issuing authority: Herefordshire Council 
 

 
  
 Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 
Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

 
No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-  

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 
the premises licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence. 
 
 

70



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

Licensing conditions 
Restaurant Licence (Hours) 
 

(1) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve from 10 am to 
12midnight. 

(2) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, and on Good Friday: 12 noon 
to 11:30pm 

(3) On Christmas Day: 12 noon to 11:30pm; For residential licence only from 12 noon to 
10.30 with a break of four hours beginning at 3pm. 

(4) On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December). 

 
Hours open to the public 
 
Plus 30 minutes to the end of the hours shown above. 
 
Conditions 
 
Alcohol may be sold or supplied: 

(1) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve from 10 am to 
12pm. 

(2) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, and on Good Friday: 12 noon 
to 11:30pm 

(3) On Christmas Day: 12 noon to 11:30pm; For residential licence only from 12 noon to 
10.30 with a break of four hours beginning at 3pm. 

(4) On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December). 

The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the 

premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
b) consumption of the alcohol on the premises by, or, the taking, sale or supply of alcohol to 

any person residing in the licensed premises; 
c) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the dispatch by the vendor of 

the alcohol so ordered; 
d) the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
e) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or 

supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an 
authorised mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air forces; 

f) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; or 
g) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person 

residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the 
consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied; or 

h) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the 
purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of 
liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the 
person carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises; 

i) the consumption of the alcohol on the premises by persons taking meals there during the 
first thirty minutes after the above hours, if the alcohol was supplied for consumption 
ancillary to those meals; 

 
 

71



Intoxicating liquor shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to persons taking 
table meals there and for consumption by such a person as an ancillary to his meal. 
 
Suitable beverages other than intoxicating liquor (including water) shall be equally available for 
consumption with or otherwise as an ancillary to meals served in the premises. 
 

Licensing objectives 
General:  Not applicable 
 
Prevention of Crime:  Not applicable 
 
Public Safety:  Not applicable 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance:  Not applicable 
 
Protection of Children:  Not applicable 
 
 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
Not applicable 
 
 
Annex 4 - Plans  
 
As attached 
 
 
 
 

72



LICENSING ACT 2003 
Part B - Premises licence summary  

 
Premises licence number  PR00208  (Conversion) 
 
Premises details 
  
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET 
 
Post town  HEREFORD Post code  HR1 2JQ 

Telephone number  01432 351075 
 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not applicable 
 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
Provision of refreshment or alcohol 
1. Provision of late night refreshment 
2. Sale by retail of alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
(1) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve from 10 am 

to 12midnight. 
(2) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, and on Good Friday: 12 

noon to 11:30pm 
(3) On Christmas Day: 12 noon to 11:30pm; For residential licence only from 12 noon to 

10.30 with a break of four hours beginning at 3pm. 
(4) On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 

permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the 
following day, midnight on 31st December). 

 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
Plus 30 minutes to the end of the hours shown above 
 

 
Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence 
Mr Ataur Rahman 
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET 
HEREFORD 
HR1 2JQ 
Telephone: (Day-time) 01432 351075 
 

 

73



Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
On the premises 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
Not applicable 
 

 
Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of 
alcohol 
Mr Ataur Rahman 
 

 
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 
Licensing Conditions:  Not applicable 
 
Licensing Objectives:  Not applicable 
 

 

74



Herefordshire Council, Licensing Section,  
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk  | facebook: hfdscouncil  | twitter: @hfdscouncil 

Economy and Place Directorate 
Director: Richard Ball 

Mr Ataur Rahman 
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET 
HEREFORD 
HR1 2JQ  

Your Ref: 

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line / Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

Taste of Raj 

Licensing 

(01432) 261761 

(01432) 383142 

licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

11th February 2019 
Dear Mr Rahman 

Re: Representation made under the Licensing Act 2003 
Premises: THE TASTE OF RAJ 

I refer to the below representation sent to this office by Trading Standards in respect of the above premises. 

RE: Premises Review Consultation 

Conditions to protect children from harm are: 

1. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing to the minimum
standard of BIIAB level 1 or any equivalent training course within 1 month of commencing employment
at the premises. Where there are existing staff this training shall be completed within 3 months of the
date that this condition first appears on the licence. No person shall be authorised to sell or supply
alcohol until this training is completed.  Refresher training will be conducted at 12 monthly intervals.
Training records shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of
Herefordshire Council on demand.

2. A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have
been unable to provide required identification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept for a
period of 12 months. It will be collected and reviewed on a weekly basis by the Designated Premises
Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the
Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

3. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and kept at the
premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the Police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined
by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire
Council.  Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall also be displayed at
all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any sale area advertising the
scheme operated.

Kind regards  
Trading Standards 

Appendix 3

75

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/




Herefordshire Council, Licensing Section,  
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk  | facebook: hfdscouncil  | twitter: @hfdscouncil 

Economy and Place Directorate 
Director: Richard Ball 

Mr Ataur Rahman 
THE TASTE OF RAJ 
67 ST. OWEN STREET 
HEREFORD 
HR1 2JQ  

Your Ref: 

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line / Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

Taste of Raj 

Licensing 

(01432) 261761 

(01432) 383142 

licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

4th February 2019 
Dear Mr Rahman 

Re: Representation made under the Licensing Act 2003 
Premises: THE TASTE OF RAJ 

I refer to the below representation sent to this office by West Mercia Police in respect of the above 
premises. 

RE: Premises Review Consultation 

Suggest conditions – Taste of Raj 

1. CCTV (IF FITTED) will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing
pictures of EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. 
Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and all 
areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. 
Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped , 
recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 31 days 
and handed to Police on demand. 
The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is 
capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in recordable media format, an authorised 
Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or the Local Authority on demand.  
The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure environment under the control 
of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An operational daily log report must be 
maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in 
the event of any failings actions taken are to be recorded.  
In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST 
report the failure to the Police on contact number ‘101’ immediately. 

2. The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the purpose
will employ SIA door staff on a risk assessed basis.  The risk assessment shall be in writing and 
shall be made immediately available on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police 

3. All existing staff shall be trained on appropriate steps to promote the Licensing Objectives within
three months of the date this condition appears on this licence.  All new staff shall be similarly 
trained within one month of taking up employment.  

Appendix 4

77

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/


All staff shall be re-trained twelve monthly thereafter.  
The training shall included: 

Drugs Awareness 
Conflict resolution 
Selling to under age person 
Selling to drunks 

 
4. Training records shall be kept on the premises which shall show the area of training covered, 
the date of the training, the name of the person and shall be signed by the trainer and trainee.  
This shall be produced to the police, an authorised Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or an 
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) on demand. 

 
5. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall written down and kept at 
the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person’ (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), an authorised Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or 
the police.  Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall also be 
displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any bar 
advertising the scheme operated.  

 
 
 

6. A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who 
have been unable to provide required identification to prove their age.  Such records shall be kept 
for a period of 12 months. It will be collected and reviewed on a weekly basis by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council 
on demand.  

 
 

7. The premises licence holder shall permanently engage the services of an     immigration 
advisor, as agreed in writing with the Licensing Authority, who shall undertake a review of all 
existing employees at the premises and to check entitlement to live and work in the UK and 
thereafter independently verify prospective employees’ right to live and work in the UK prior to the 
employee being engaged to work at the premises. 

 
If you agree to these conditions could you email James Mooney at 
licensing.herefordshire@westmercia.pnn.police.uk stating you agree and copy the email to 
licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk;  
 
or  
 
If you wish to discuss this matter further please do not hesitate to contact Mr Mooney on 
01432 347102 or via email. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

EMMA BOWELL 
LICENSING TECHNICAL OFFICER 

 

78

mailto:licensing.herefordshire@westmercia.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


Appendix 5

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Meeting: Licensing sub-committee
Meeting date: 7 March 2019
Title of report: Application for an occasional premises 

licence in respect of ‘How The Light Gets In 
Festival 2019, Wye Meadow, Newport Street, 
Hay-on-Wye. HR3 5BZ – Licensing Act 2003

Report by: Licensing Technical Officer

Classification
Open

Key Decision 
This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected
Golden Valley North

Purpose
To consider an application for an occasional premises licence in respect of ‘How the Light 
Gets In Festival 2019’ Wye Meadow, Newport Street, Hay-on-Wye, HR3 5BZ.

Recommendation

THAT:

The sub committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give 
appropriate weight to:

 The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,
 The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
 The guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and
 The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 - 2020.

Options

1. There are a number of options open to the sub-committee:

a) Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule accompanying the application and the mandatory conditions set out in 
the Licensing Act 2003,

87

AGENDA ITEM 6



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

b) Grant the licence subject to modified conditions to that of the operating schedule 
where the sub-committee considers it appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and add mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 
2003,

c) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 
the application relates

d) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise supervisor, or

e) To reject the application.

Reasons for Recommendations

2. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Key Considerations

Licence Application  

3. The application for a grant of the premises licence has received representation and is 
brought before the sub committee for determination.

4. The details of the application are:

Applicant Amanda Houghton

How The Light Gets In Festival 2019, Wye Meadow, Newport 
Street, Hay-on-Wye, HR3 5BZ

Solicitor Not applicable

Type of 
application:

New

Date received:

9 January 2019

28 Days consultation  ended

6 February 2019

5. Summary of Application

The application (appendix 1) requests an occasional premises licence between 24th 
May 2019 and 27th May 2019 to allow the following licensable activities, during the 
hours shown as follows:

Films/Recorded Music/Anything Similar to Regulated Entertainment (Indoors), Live 
Music (Indoors/Outdoors)

Monday 09:00-23:00
Friday 16:00-02:00
Saturday & Sunday 09:00-02:00

88



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors/Outdoors)
Friday - Sunday 23:00-02:00

Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption on the premises)
Monday 12:00-23:00
Friday 16:00-01:45
Saturday & Sunday 12:00-01:45

Premises History

5. On 8 November 2017 the Licensing Authority received four (4) Temporary Event 
Notice’s (TENs) from Amanda Houghton in respect of How The Light Gets In Festival 
2018. The dates for this event were 24 – 29 May 2018. These were granted by the 
Licensing Authority. West Mercia Police and Environmental Protection also received 
copies of the TENs and were consulted
 
Summary of Representations

7. Two (2) representations have been received from the Responsible Authorities 
(Environment Protection and Trading Standards) which have been agreed by the 
applicant. These can be found at appendix 2 and 3 respectively. 

8. Three (3) public representations have been accepted by the local authority as being 
relevant. These can be found at appendix 4 through to appendix 6.

9. Three (3) further public representations have been received by the local authority but 
were rejected due to two being not relevant and one being received out of time.

Community Impact

10. Any decision is unlikely to have any impact on the local community.

Equality duty 

11. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report.

12. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and 
the residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of 
this report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood 
and/or may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close 
proximity to the premises.

13.  Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has 
the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes 
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of 
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol – 
Article 1 – also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest 
and conditions provided for by law.  Members must accordingly make a decision 
which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the 
rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

89



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

Financial implications

14. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

Legal Implications

15. As relevant representations have been received, the sub committee must determine 
the application under Section 3.5.7 (c) of the Herefordshire Council constitution. The 
representations must relate to the licensing objectives and the sub committee must 
determine the likely effect of the grant of the premises licences on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives.

16. The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing 
objectives namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention 
of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions 
under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance 
under Section 182 of the Act and the Council’s own statement of licensing policy. The 
options available to the licensing authority are set out in section 1 of this report.

17. The sub committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have 
appeared before the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority.

18. The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: 
CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative 
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the 
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

In this case it was summed up that: -

A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do 
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

19. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to 
a licence with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ 
must be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions.

20. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of 
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice 
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and 
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

21. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 
enforceable condition.

Right of Appeal

22. Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:

Decision to grant premises licence or impose conditions etc.

90



Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell – Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

 (1) This paragraph applies where a licensing authority grants a premises licence
under section 18.

(2) The holder of the licence may appeal against any decision—
(a) to impose conditions on the licence under subsection (2)(a) or (3)(b)

of that section, or
(b) to take any step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section

(exclusion of licensable activity or refusal to specify person as
premises supervisor).

(3) Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the
application desires to contend—
(a) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or
(b) that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have

imposed different or additional conditions, or to have taken a step
mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section,

he may appeal against the decision.
(4) In sub-paragraph (3) “relevant representations” has the meaning given in 

section 18(6). 

23. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court and must be made within 21 days 
beginning with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of 
the decision appealed against

Risk Management

24. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a 
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21days of being notified of 
the decision in writing. 

Consultees

25. All Responsible Authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire. 

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Application Form
Appendix 2 – Environmental Protection Representation
Appendix 3 - Trading Standards Representation
Appendix 4 – Public Rep 1
Appendix 5 – Public Rep 2
Appendix 6 – Public Rep 3

Background Papers

None.

91





Appendix 1

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



 

ELI PREM – 11 Memo to Responsible Authorities       (11/07) Issue 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

To : LICENSING OFFICER 

From : Aris Trezins 

Tel : 01432 261761 My Ref : ATR/273336/ 

Date : 21 January 2019 Your Ref :  
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
APPLICATION FOR NEW OR VARIATION OF PREMISES LICENCE  
How the Light Gets In Festival Wye Meadow, Newport Street, Hay-on-Wye, HR3 5BZ 
 
Having assessed the above application, I would like to make the following representation: 

Representation Industry 
Guidance 

PREVENTION OF CRIME & DISORDER 
 None 
 
 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
None 
 

 

 

 

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
• Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the festival site so as to cause a 

nuisance. 
• A draft Noise Management Plan will be produced 3 months prior to the first 

day of the Festival and will be submitted to the Herefordshire Council - 
Environmental Health (EH) who shall notify the premises licence holder 
(within one calendar month of receipt) in writing whether it is acceptable or 
unacceptable. The final plan shall be submitted to EH at least 14 days prior 
to the event for approval. The event shall not take place until EH has 
agreed the plan.  Once agreed no change shall be made to the plan without 
the agreement of EH and the event must comply with the agreed plan. 

• Irrespective of noise levels prescribed in the Noise Management Strategy, 
The  Premises Licence Holder or DPS or any person who has been 
nominated as their deputy  must immediately comply with any request to 
adjust noise levels/ frequency spectra made by an ‘authorised person’ (as 
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) . 

 
 

 

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM 
 
None 
 

 

 

119



 

 

REFERENCES 
Please Reference the industry guidance from which your representation has been sourced. 
 

ARIS TREZINS 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

120



Appendix 3 

Dear Ms Houghton 
 
As an authorised body under the Licensing Act 2003, Herefordshire Council 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards have received details of your 
application for a premises licence for How The Lights Get In Festival – Hay on Wye.  
 
Trading Standards have the responsibility for enforcing the Licensing Act 2003 in 
respect of sales of alcohol to anyone under the age of eighteen.  
 
After looking at your application under the section protection of children from harm 
we would seek to include the following conditions on the premises licence in addition 
to those already specified on the application: 
 

1. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol 
retailing to the minimum standard of BIIAB level 1 or any equivalent training 
course within 1 month of commencing employment at the premises. No person 
shall be authorised to sell or supply alcohol until this training is 
completed.  Refresher training will be conducted at 12 monthly 
intervals.  Training records shall be kept on the premises and produced to the 
police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on 
demand. 
 

2.   A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of 
the people who have been unable to provide required identification to prove 
their age. Such records shall be kept for a period of 12 months. It will be 
collected and reviewed on a daily basis by the Designated Premises Supervisor 
and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 
of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of 
Herefordshire Council on demand.  

 
3.   The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written 

down and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the 
Police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire 
Council.  Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) 
shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least 
one location behind any sale area advertising the scheme operated. 

 
 

If you agree to these conditions could you email me stating you agree and copy the email to 
licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk; or  
 
If you wish to discuss this matter further please do not hesitate to contact me on 01432 
260163, lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk    
 
Best regards 
 
Leah Wilson – Trading Standards 
 

121

mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk




Appendix 4

123



124



Appendix 5

125



126



127





Appendix 6

129




	Agenda
	 
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	4 Application for a review of a premises licence in respect of 'The Ducker, 11 South Street, Leominster. HR6 8JA- Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - Review Application Form
	Appendix 2 - Variation to premises licence agreed at licensing sub committee meeting held on 25 September 20
	11. Electrical & Gas Installations
	13. Hypnotism
	14. Maintenance, Repair and Cleanliness
	15. Special Effects
	The installation and use of laser beams, pyrotechnics or real flames, explosive or highly flammable or smoke producing agent, for any purpose shall not be permitted without prior notification to the Licensing Authority.  Notification, together with a ...
	16. Strobe lights shall be operated on a fixed rate of not more than four flashes per second.  Where more than one strobe light is used, the flashes shall be synchronised.  In any case, such lights shall not be installed without notify the Licensing A...
	17. Disabled people
	When disabled people are present, arrangements must exist to enable their safe evacuation in the event of an emergency. Details of the arrangements shall be recorded in writing and shall be made immediately available to an ‘authorised person’ (as def...
	18. Disabled people on the premises must be made aware of the evacuation procedure.
	32. There shall be no new entry or re-entry to the premises after 23:30 hours on any day except in an emergency in which case this will be logged. The log shall show the time of the incident, the emergency service attending and the type of incident. T...

	Appendix 3 - Current Premise Licence
	Premises licence number – PR00921 (App Vary Premises Licence)
	Part 1 - Premises details
	Part 2
	Premises licence number – PR00921 (App to Vary Premises Licence)

	Premises details

	Appendix 4 - Breach of conditions letter 03 07 2018
	PR00921
	Licensing 
	(01432) 261761
	(01432) 261982

	Appendix 5 - Licence Holder Response 03 07 2018
	Appendix 6 - Email to HAND Scheme
	Appendix 7 - Breach of conditions letter 24 08 2018
	Appendix 8 - Licence Holder Response 30 08 2018
	Appendix 9 - Local authority representation
	Representation made by the Local Authority 31st January 2019
	I am an officer authorised under the Licensing Act 2003.

	Appendix 10 - West Mercia Police Representation
	Appendix 11 - Other parties representation - local ward member

	5 Application for a review of a premises licence in respect of The Taste of Raj, 67 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2JQ- Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - Review application form
	Appendix 2 - Current premises licence
	Premises licence number  PR00208  (Conversion)
	Part 1 - Premises details
	Part 2
	Premises licence number  PR00208  (Conversion)

	Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule
	Licensing conditions
	Restaurant Licence (Hours)
	Hours open to the public
	Conditions
	Plus 30 minutes to the end of the hours shown above

	Premises details

	Appendix 3 - Trading standards representation
	Appendix 4 - West Mercia Police Representation
	Appendix 5 - Further information received from West Mercia Police

	6 Application for an occasional premises licence in respect of How The Light Gets In Festival 2019, Wye Meadow, Newport Street, Hay-on-Wye. HR3 5BZ - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - Application Form
	App Form.pdf
	DPS Consent
	Plans of Premise

	Appendix 2 - Environmental Protection
	Appendix 3 - Trading Standards Representation
	Appendix 4 - Public Representation
	Appendix 5 - Public Representation
	Appendix 6 - Public Representation




